AGREEMENT

between

TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 25

International Brotherhood of Teamsters

and

CITY OF BOSTON

(Steam Firemen, Power Plant Engineers)

For the Period

July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2027

Contents

AGREEMENT:	2
ARTICLE I (1) EMPLOYEES COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT:	2
ARTICLE II (2) NONDISCRIMINATION AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION	. 3
ARTICLE III (3) PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF UNION DUES	3
ARTICLE IV (4) PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF AGENCY SERVICE FEE	4
ARTICLE V (5) MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	4
ARTICLE VI (6) DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	4
ARTICLE VII (7) GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	5
ARTICLE VIII (8) NO-STRIKE CLAUSE	7
ARTICLE IX (9) STABILITY OF AGREEMENT	8
ARTICLE X (10) HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	8
ARTICLE XI (11) TEMPORARY SERVICE IN A LOWER OR HIGHER POSITION	9
ARTICLE XII (12) HOLIDAYS	11
ARTICLE XIII (13) VACATION LEAVE	12
ARTICLE XIV (14) SICK LEAVE	14
ARTICLE XV (15) OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE	16
ARTICLE XVI (16) SAFETY AND HEALTH	19
ARTICLE XVII (17) MISCELLANEOUS	19
ARTICLE XVIII (18) PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL	22
ARTICLE XIX (19) COMPENSATION	23
ARTICLE XIXA (19A) DENTAL/VISION	26
ARTICLE XX (20) DRUG TESTING POLICY	26
ARTICLE XXI (21). DURATION OF AGREEMENT	30
SIGNATURE PAGE	31
APPENDIX I	33
PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL FORM	. 34

AGREEMENT:

THIS AGREEMENT made under Chapter 150E of the General Laws, by and between the City of Boston, hereinafter called "the City" or "the Municipal Employer", acting by and through its Mayor, or its Office of Labor Relations and International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local 25, hereinafter called "the Union". The parties agree to act at all times in such a manner as to insure proper dignity and respect for all City employees and for the City residents they serve.

WITNESSETH:

ARTICLE I (1) EMPLOYEES COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT:

Section 1. The Municipal Employer recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative, for the purpose of collective bargaining relative to wages, hours and other conditions of employment, of all employees employed in the service of the City in the following positions classified in Schedule B constituting a part of the COMPENSATION PLAN EFFECTIVE MARCH 6, 1963 FOR CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OF CITY OF BOSTON, hereinafter called "the 1963 Plan":

- *Steam Fireman
- *Steam Fireman(Hospital Department)
- *Steam Fireman (Incinerator)
- *Third-Class Stationary Engineer
- *Third-Class Stationary Engineer(Hospital Department)
- *Third-Class Stationary Engineer(New City Hall)
- *Second-Class Stationary Engineer
- *Second-Class Stationary Engineer(Hospital Department)
- *Second-Class Stationary Engineer (New City Hall)
- *Chief Power Plant Engineer
- *Chief Power Plant Engineer, City Hall (New)
- *Assistant Chief Power Plant Engineer,

Department of Health and Hospitals

*Chief Power Plant Engineer,

Department of Health and Hospitals

*Chief Power Plant Engineer,

Long Island Chronic Disease Hospital

*Chief Power Plant Engineer,

Mattapan Chronic Disease Hospital

*Maintenance Mechanic

All Maintenance Mechanics will possess a valid, job-related state license. And excluding all other employees.

Section 2. All employees who are required to operate, maintain, and/or repair equipment in the municipal employer's buildings, such as boilers, or auxiliary heating equipment shall be a licensed members of the bargaining unit.

The buildings with generators, evaporators, air conditioners, absorbers and compressors shall be required to have employees with stationary engineer licenses or other licensed member of the bargaining unit available on all shifts.

Approved H.V.A.C. training and expertise may also be required where new technology requires new or increased skills from employees.

ARTICLE II (2) NONDISCRIMINATION AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

The City and the Union agree not to discriminate in any way against employees covered by this Agreement on account of membership or non-membership in the Union, or on account of age, ancestry, citizenship, color, creed, disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, genetic information, marital information, marital status, national origin, natural and protective hairstyles, parental status, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, veteran status, active military status, or any other characteristic protected by City ordinance, state law, or federal law. The parties agree that the concepts of Equality and Diversity, as articulated in City policies, shall be applied consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE III (3) PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF UNION DUES AND SERVICE FEES

Section 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 17A, Chapter 180 of the General Laws (Chapter 740 of the Acts of 1950), accepted by the City Council of the City of Boston on January 15, 1951, and approved by its Mayor on January 17, 1951, union dues, initiation fees, and service fees shall be deducted weekly from the salary of each employee who executes and remits to the Municipal Employer a form of authorization for payroll deduction of union dues or service fees. Remittance of the aggregate amount of dues deducted shall be made to the Union's Treasurer within twenty-five (25) working days after the month in which dues are deducted.

Section 2. The Union agrees to indemnify the Municipal Employer for damages or other financial loss which the Municipal Employer may be required to pay or suffer by an administrative agency or court of contempt jurisdiction as a result of the Municipal Employer's compliance with Section 1 of this Article.

ARTICLE IV (4) PAYROLL DEDUCTION OF AGENCY SERVICE FEE

This Article deliberately left blank.

ARTICLE V (5) MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Section 1. The Municipal Employer shall not be deemed to be limited in any way by this Agreement in the performance of the regular and customary functions of municipal management, and reserves and retains all powers, authority and prerogatives including, without limitation, the exclusive right of the appointing authority to issue reasonable rules and regulations governing the conduct of his Department, provided that such rules and regulations are not inconsistent with the express provisions of this Agreement.

Section 2. The Municipal Employer reserves and retains the right to contract out work or subcontract out work. Pursuant to the exercise of such right, no employee shall be laid off if there is available work in the same position or in a similar position which he is qualified to fill and is eligible to fill under Civil Service law and rules.

ARTICLE VI (6) DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

Section 1. No employee either Civil Service of non-Civil Service, who has completed six (6) months of actual work shall be disciplined, suspended, demoted, or discharged except for just cause. Any period or periods during the first six (6) months of service for which an employee is not paid (including as little as one (1) day) or any period or periods during the employee's first six (6) months of service for which an employee uses paid time off, shall extend the probationary period by that amount of time. For the purpose of treating employees equitably who are working at less than a full-time capacity, the probationary period for such employees shall be considered complete after the employee has actually worked 910 hours (35 hours per week for 26 weeks). Any employee's probationary period may be extended at the discretion of the City up to a maximum of three (3) months of actual work. The employee will be notified in writing of the length and reason for the extension.

When an employee who is eligible to appeal his grievance under Civil Service or otherwise under the preceding sentence elects to proceed under the grievance and arbitration procedure with the Union's approval, such dispute may be processed under the contract grievance and arbitration procedure, in which case the contract grievance and arbitration procedure shall be the exclusive procedure for resolving such grievance in accordance with General Laws, Chapter 105E, Section 8.

In the event of group discipline arising out of the same incident, the dispute shall not be processed under the contract grievance and arbitration procedure unless all the employees subject to the group discipline so elect to proceed thereunder.

- Section 2. The probationary period shall be the first six months of continuous active service of an employee in the bargaining unit. Any employee provisionally promoted, provisionally appointed, or placed in a new position in the bargaining unit, shall serve a separate six (6) month evaluation period during which time the Appointing Authority, at his discretion, may return him to his same or similar position.
- **Section 3.** The City agrees to apply the concept of progressive discipline in case of discipline and discharge except in the most serious cases.
- **Section 4.** An employee whose office or position is neither classified nor deemed to be classified under Civil Service law and rules who has completed his six-month probationary period, shall not be discharged except for just cause.

ARTICLE VII (7) GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1. Only matters involving the question whether the Municipal Employer is complying with the express provisions of this Agreement shall constitute grievances under this Article.

Section 2. Grievances shall be processed as follows:

- <u>Step 1.</u> The Union representative, with or without the aggrieved employee, shall present the grievance orally to the employee's immediate superior outside of the bargaining unit, who shall attempt to adjust the grievance informally.
- Step 2. If the grievance is not settled at Step #1, it shall be presented in writing to the appointing authority or his delegate in the department in which the aggrieved employee serves. The appointing authority or his delegate shall schedule a hearing on the grievance within three (3) working days after he receives it and shall issue his written answer thereto within three (3) working days after the hearing.
- Step 3. If the grievance is not resolved at Step #2 within six (6) working days, the grievance may be submitted to the City's Office of Labor Relations which shall schedule a hearing within ten (10) working days after it receives the grievance. Conducting the hearing shall be one or more of the staff of the Office of Labor Relations. In addition, the Municipal Employer's committee to hear grievances may include such other persons as the Office of Labor Relations may from time to time designate.

Step 4. If the grievance is not resolved at Step #3 within fifteen (15) working days, the Union, and only the Union, may submit the grievance to arbitration. Such submission to arbitration must be made within thirty (30) days after the expiration of the 15 working days referred to herein. The arbitrator shall be selected by the mutual agreement of the parties. If the parties fail to agree on a selection in the first instance, the American Arbitration Association shall be requested to provide a panel of arbitrators from which a selection shall be made. Expenses for the arbitrator's services shall be shared equally by the parties. The parties agree in principle to use the expedited arbitration procedure of the American Arbitration Association whenever feasible.

Section 3. Written submission of grievances at Step #2 shall be in not less than triplicate, on forms to be agreed upon jointly, and shall be signed by the representative of the Union filing the grievance. If a grievance is adjusted at any step of the grievance procedure, the adjustment shall be noted on the grievance form and shall be signed by the Municipal Employer's representative and the Union representative reaching the adjustment. At any step of the grievance procedure where no adjustment is reached, the grievance form shall bear a notation that the grievance is unsettled, shall be signed by the Municipal Employer's representative and the Union representative then handling the grievance, and shall be referred to the next step in the grievance procedure as provided herein.

Section 4. A grievance shall be deemed waived if:

- (a) not presented in writing at Step #2 within ten (10) working days of the occurrence, or failure of occurrence, whichever may be the case, of the incident upon which the grievance is based;
- (b) not presented at Step #3 within ten (10) days after presentation of Step #2;
- (c) not submitted to arbitration within forty-five (45) days after presentation at Step #3. (See Step #4, Section 2 of this Article.) "Submission to arbitration" means a letter to American Arbitration Association, with a copy to the Office of Labor Relations.
- Section 5. A written list of Union stewards and other representatives in each department shall be furnished to the appointing authority immediately after their designation, and the Union shall notify the appointing authority of any changes.

Subject to the operating needs of each department, determined by the appointing authority, leave of absence without loss of pay will be permitted for reasonable time for the processing of grievances by one employee's representative on each shift.

Section 6. Any incident which occurred or failed to occur prior to the effective date of this Agreement shall not be the subject of any grievance hereunder.

- Section 7. The arbitrator hereunder shall be without power to alter, amend, add to, or detract from the language of this Agreement. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties. The arbitrator shall submit in writing his decision within thirty (30) days after the conclusion of testimony and argument, or as soon as practicable thereafter, unless extended by mutual consent. The arbitrator shall have no power to recommend any right or relief for any period of time prior to the effective date of this Agreement.
- Section 8. Any matter which is subject to the jurisdiction of the Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination ("MCAD"), the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"), the Civil Service Commission or any Retirement Board established by law shall not be a subject of grievance or arbitration hereunder. Complaints by Civil Service employees that they are being required by the appointing authority to perform work outside their job descriptions shall be referred to the Supervisor of Personnel prior to making complaint to the Director of Civil Service.

ARTICLE VIII (8) NO-STRIKE CLAUSE

- Section I. No employee covered by this Agreement shall engage in, induce or encourage any strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or withholding of service. The Union agrees that neither it nor any of its officers or agents will call, institute, authorize, participate in, sanction or ratify any such strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or withholding of services.
- Section 2. Should any employee or group of employees covered by this agreement engage in any strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or withholding of services, the Union shall forthwith disavow any such strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or withholding of services and shall refuse to recognize any picket line established in connection therewith, and failure to comply will result in waiver of the just cause provision of this Agreement. Furthermore, at the request of the Municipal Employer, the Union shall take all reasonable means to induce such employee or group of employees to terminate the strike, work stoppage, slowdown, or withholding of services and to return to work forthwith.
- Section 3. In consideration of the performance by the Union of its obligations under Section 1 and 2 of this Article, there shall be no liability on the part of the Union nor of its officers or agents for any damages resulting from the unauthorized breach of the agreements contained in this Article by individual members of the Union.

ARTICLE IX (9) STABILITY OF AGREEMENT

- **Section I.** No agreement, understanding, alteration or variation of the Agreements' terms or provisions herein contained shall bind the parties hereto unless made and executed in writing by the City's Office of Labor Relations and the Union.
- Section 2. The failure of the Municipal Employer or the Union to insist, in any one or more incidents, upon performance of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement shall not be considered as a waiver or relinquishment of the right of the Municipal Employer or of the Union to future performance of any such term or condition, and the obligations of the Union and the Municipal Employer to such future performance shall continue in full force and effect.

ARTICLE X (10) HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

- Section I. The regular workweek shall consist of five (5) eight-hour days between any Wednesday and the following Tuesday, inclusive.
- Section 2. All authorized overtime service in excess of the regular workday or the regular workweek shall be compensated on a time-and-one-half basis. However, work performed on the seventh day shall be compensated at double time.
- **Section 3.** An employee shall not be denied overtime compensation for authorized overtime service, as specified in Section 2 of this Article, by reason of authorized absence during the week in which such overtime service is performed. However, in the event of unauthorized absence in the week in which overtime service is performed, or in the event of absence without pay by reason of disciplinary action, such employee shall be compensated for such overtime service on a straight-time basis only.
- Section 4. Employees shall not accept compensatory time off in lieu of monetary compensation for overtime work.
- Section 5. Overtime work shall be distributed as equitably as possible. A list of all eligible employees shall be posted in a conspicuous place, and kept up-to-date, by the Municipal Employer. For the purpose of a regular rotation of overtime opportunities, but for such purpose only, overtime work refused shall be considered as overtime actually worked.
- Section 6. In the event an employee reports to his regular place of work at his regularly scheduled time and is sent home for lack of work, he shall be entitled to a day's pay.
- Section 7. All employees' work schedules shall provide for a 15-minute rest period during each one-half (1/2) shift. The rest period shall be scheduled at the middle of each one-half (1/2) shift whenever this is feasible. The present practice with respect to wash-up time shall continue in force for the duration of this Agreement.

- Section 8. If an employee who has left his place of employment after having completed work on his regular shift is called back to work, he shall be paid for each hour worked on a time-and-one-half basis, and in no event shall he receive less than four (4) hours' pay on a straight-time basis.
- **Section 9.** All employees shall be scheduled to work on regular work shifts, and each work shift shall have a regular starting time and quitting time. Work schedules shall be posted on all department bulletin boards at all times. Employees shall be given reasonable notice of any change in their work schedule.
- Section 10. The Municipal Employer agrees to give the Union reasonable notice of any proposed change in scheduled work shifts and an opportunity to discuss the proposed change. In the event of failure to agree on this proposed change, the Municipal Employer shall have the right to institute the change and the Union shall have the right to take the matter up as a grievance under the grievance procedure.
- Section 11. All overtime shall be paid no later than the next payroll cycle following the week in which such overtime was earned.
- **Section 12.** The City agrees not to transfer employees for disciplinary reasons except in accordance with Article VI.

ARTICLE XI (11) TEMPORARY SERVICE IN A LOWER OR HIGHER POSITION

- **Section 1.** While an employee is performing, pursuant to assignment, the duties of a position classified in a grade lower than the grade of the position in which he performs regular service, he shall be compensated at the rate of pay for the grade of the position in which he performs regular service.
- Section 2. An employee who is performing, pursuant to assignment, temporary service in a position classified in a grade higher than the grade of the position in which he performs regular service, other than for the purpose of filling in for an employee on vacation, shall, commencing with the sixth consecutive day of actual service in such higher position, be compensated for such service at the rate to which he would have been entitled had he been promoted to such position. Any remedy based on a grievance filed under this Section shall be limited in effect to a period not to exceed five (5) days prior to the date of the filing of the grievance in writing.
- **Section 3.** When there is an existing Civil Service list for a higher position to be filled on a temporary basis, the selection of an employee to perform temporary service in such higher position shall be made in accordance with Civil Service rules.

- Section 4. When there is no existing Civil Service list for the position to be filled temporarily, the selection of an employee to perform service in such higher position shall be made on the basis of qualifications and ability; and where qualifications and ability are substantially equal, seniority as defined under Civil Service law and rules shall be the determining factor. The appointing Authority's decision shall not be made arbitrarily, capriciously or unreasonably. In the event that the senior applicant(s) for the position is(are) not selected, the appointing authority shall, upon request by the Union, submit reasons in writing why said employee(s) was(were) not selected to fill the position. Any dispute hereunder shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure.
- Section 5. In the event of a permanent vacancy, the appointing authority will first attempt to fill the vacancy by lateral transfers based on seniority and then follow the procedure set forth below.
 - (a) If the vacancy cannot be filled by a permanent transfer, then the appointing authority may fill the vacancy with a provisional promotion. The Personnel Division shall either post the vacancy for ten (10) consecutive working days in the department and employing units in which bargaining unit personnel are employed and send the notice, receipt requested, to the Local of the bargaining unit which is located at 544 Main Street, Boston, MA 02129-1113.

Promotional examination shall be made known in the same manner as provisional promotions.

- (b) On the posting the appointing authority shall specify the job classifications eligible to fill the position. (His decision as to eligible classifications of employees shall be subject to Civil Service law and rules and shall not be a subject of grievance or arbitration.) The poster shall also specify the duties of the position and the location of the position.
- (c) The selection of an employee for provisional promotion shall be made from among the eligible bidders in the manner specified in Section 4 of this Article. Notice of selection shall be posted on the original poster at the time the selection is made.
- Section 6. A complaint by an employee who is junior to the employee selected under Section 4 or Section 5 of this Article shall not be a subject of grievance or arbitration.

ARTICLE XII (12) HOLIDAYS

Section I. The following days shall be considered holidays for the purposes enumerated below:

New Year's Day

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day President's Day

Patriots' Day

Memorial Day

Juneteenth

Independence Day

Labor Day

Columbus Day

Veterans' Day

Thanksgiving Day

Christmas Day

If the Holiday falls on a Saturday, it will be observed on the preceding Friday. If the Holiday falls on a Sunday, it will be observed on the following Monday.

Section 2. If an employee is not required to work on any of the holidays listed in Section 1 of this Article which falls on his regular workday, he shall nevertheless be paid his regular weekly compensation for the workweek in which the holiday falls. If in the course of his regular service an employee is required to work on any of the holidays listed in Section 1 of this Article, or if the holiday falls during an employee's vacation or on his regular day off (such as Saturday), shall receive, in addition to his regular compensation, either an additional day off or an additional day's pay on a straight-time basis.

Section 3. Notwithstanding any provision of this agreement to the contrary, the City reserves and retains the right to determine whether an employee who works on a holiday shall receive additional time off or additional pay.

Section 4. A Department Head/Supervisor may request that an employee, who utilized sick leave on the day before or the day after a holiday, provide a signed statement from a physician, nurse practitioner or other health care provider confirming the necessity for such absence prior to the granting of Holiday pay. Should such an employee refuse or otherwise fail to provide such a statement, that employee shall not be paid for the Holiday on which he/she called in sick on the day before or after.

Section 5. "Floating holidays" In addition to the holidays enumerated in Section I of this Article, on each January 1, full-time employees who were City of Boston employees on January 1, 2013 will be eligible for two (2) "floating holidays" that must be taken by December 31 at a time or times requested by the employee and approved by his/her immediate supervisor outside the bargaining unit. Employees who were not City of Boston employees on January 1, 2013, or who separated from service after January 1, 2013 shall not receive "floating holidays."

"Floating holidays" shall be subject to the same notice and approval requirements as outlined in Article XII ("Vacation Leave") of this Agreement. "Floating holidays" not used by December 31st of the year in which it was received shall not carry over into the following year and may not be redeemed for monetary compensation at any time. In the event an employee follows the appropriate notice requirements and is denied the use of his/her "floating holiday(s)" and as a result is unable to use the "floating holiday(s)" by the end of the calendar year, that employee may carry over his/her "floating holiday(s)" to the next calendar year. Any "floating holiday(s)" carried over must be used by December 31st of the following year.

ARTICLE XIII (13) VACATION LEAVE

Section 1. The "vacation eligibility year" shall be the twelve (12) months preceding January 1.

Section 2. Vacation leave shall be calculated as follows:

- (A) An employee who starts 6 months' work before July 1 shall receive one week vacation during his/her first calendar year of employment and only upon completion of six months of service. Continuing thereafter, vacation shall be calculated pursuant to the schedule in Section 2(C) below.
- (B) An employee who starts work after July I shall not receive any vacation during his/her first calendar year of employment. Thereafter and upon completion of six months service, vacation leave shall be calculated pursuant to the schedule in Section 2(C) below.
- (C) Effective January 1, 1998, for all employees not in their first calendar year of employment, vacation leave shall be calculated pursuant to the following schedule:

Length of Service Completed	Vacation Entitlement in Next
as of January 1	Calendar Year
Less than six (6) months	One (1) week
More than six (6) months, but less than four (4) years	Two (2) weeks
More than four (4) years, but less than nine (9) years	Three (3) weeks
More than nine (9) years, but less than fourteen (14) years	Four (4) weeks
More than fourteen (14) years but less than thirty (30) years	Five (5) weeks
More than thirty (30) years	Six (6) weeks

Section 3. For the purpose of determining vacation leave under Section 2C of this Article, service with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the City of Boston, or the County of Suffolk shall be included in computing length of service. However, the number of years computed and

credited shall be capped at nine (9) years. All members of the bargaining unit who are on the payroll as of the effective date of this Agreement, which shall be complete upon execution by the Mayor [October 4, 2004], shall be exempt from the terms of this provision.¹

- Section 4. The appointing authority may grant during any calendar year a one-week vacation to any employee covered by this Agreement who for any reason is not entitled to vacation leave under Section 2 of this Article; provided that on January 1 of such year such employee has been continuously in active service for at least five months.
- Section 5. An employee may secure the benefits of Sections 2 of this Article only during active service; and no rights under said Sections shall accrue to an employee in the event of the termination of his employment before the vacation leave therein authorized has been actually taken, except as specifically provided in Sections 6 and 7 of this Article.

Any employee on an authorized leave of absence shall accrue or not accrue vacation time in accordance with the City's Family & Medical Leave Policy, or Military Leave Policy, whichever is applicable.

- Section 6. If during the vacation eligibility year (prior to January 1) the employment of an employee who has actually worked for the Municipal Employer for thirty (30) weeks in the aggregate since January 1 of the preceding year and who is entitled to vacation leave under Section 2 of this Article is terminated for a reason other than death, retirement, or discharge for cause, such employee shall be paid an amount in lieu of vacation leave prorated in the proportion that the number of months of service since January 1 of the preceding year (including the month in which employment is terminated) bears to twelve.
- Section 7. If the employment of any employee entitled to vacation leave under Section 2 of this Article, is terminated by death or retirement without the employee having been granted such vacation, such employee, or in the case of his death, the employee's estate, or as provided in Section IIII of Chapter 41 of the General Laws, the employee's surviving spouse or next of kin shall be paid an amount in lieu of such vacation; provided, that no monetary or other allowance has already been made therefor, and provided, further, if the employment is terminated by death or retirement before January 1, that the employee has actually worked for the Municipal Employer for thirty (30) weeks in the aggregate since December 31 of the preceding year.
- Section 8. Immediately prior to departure on vacation leave, an employee will be permitted to be advanced vacation pay allowance up to his maximum vacation leave entitlement under this Article, provided that when the employee is departing on a vacation leave period which is less than his full vacation leave entitlement, the advancement shall not exceed the vacation pay allowance for such vacation leave period.

¹ The current members are: James Kearns, Dennis Sholes, Peter Millerick, Mark Mulkern, Charles P. Leahy, Michael Keogh, John Hickey, and John A. Gleeson.

Section 9. Vacation leave shall be taken at such time as, in the opinion of the appointing authority, will cause the least interference with the regular work of his Department. Subject to the preceding sentence, vacation leave selection shall be determined by seniority. Vacation leave may be taken from January 1st to December 31st subject to the operating needs of the Department and secondly at the discretion of the appointing authority.

Section 10. Vacation leave may not be taken on the following holidays: Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, and New Year's Day. Watch firemen and engineers may not take vacation leave during these days if it would require any of the spare firemen or engineers to fill in for them.

Section 11. Employees may carry over from one year to the next year up to ten (10) days of vacation time. All carry over days must be used by December 31st of the calendar year.

ARTICLE XIV (14) SICK LEAVE

Section 1. Section 1. Every employee covered by this Agreement shall, subject to Section 2 of this Article, be granted sick leave, without loss of pay, for authorized absences pursuant to the City's Attendance Policy. This section will become effective 90-days after this Agreement is approved by the City Council.

Sick leave shall accrue at the rate of 1 1/4 dates for each month of actual service, not to exceed fifteen (15) working days in any calendar year. Employees shall not be credited with fifteen (15) days' sick leave as of January 1 of any year, in advance of such year having been worked. Sick leave not used in the year in which it accrues, together with any accumulated sick leave standing to the employee's credit on the effective date of this Agreement and not used in the current year, may be accumulated for use in a subsequent year. Sick leave not used prior to the termination of an employee's service shall lapse, and the employee shall not be entitled to any compensation in lieu thereof.

Section 2. A day shift employee calling in sick must call in one (1) hour before his watch is to begin. Afternoon and night watch must call in two (2) hours prior to start of shift. Employee returning to work must call in the day prior to returning to work. When he is reporting back over the weekend, he must notify his employer by noontime Friday. If the employer assigns a relief man because he was not notified the man was returning to work, he does not have to pay the sick man for that shift.

Section 3. The appointing authority may require an employee who seeks to return to work after a leave of absence for sickness or other cause to be examined by the Medical Advisor to the Workmen's Compensation Agent, prior to the employee's reinstatement to active service. No employee shall suffer loss of pay for lapse of time between the date he reports for work after a sick leave of absence and the date of examination by the said Medical Advisor if: (a) the

employee reports for work with a doctor's certificate certifying that the employee is able to work in the position in which he was performing regular service, and (b) said Medical Advisor approves such certificate.

Section 4. An employee on leave because of an occupational disability may take such of the sick leave allowance to which he is entitled under this Article as, when added to the amount of any disability (Workmen's) compensation, will result in the payment to him of his full salary for any particular workweek.

The Municipal Employer agrees to support legislation authorizing it to pay such amount of compensation as, when added to the amount of any disability (Workmen's) compensation, will result in payment of a full week's salary to an employee who is on leave because he was injured in the line of duty as the result of violence by a patient or person in lawful custody.

Section 5. Up to five (5) days' sick leave credit will be restored to an employee's accumulated sick leave when such employee has used sick leave allowance between date of injury on the job and date disability (Workmen's) compensation is awarded, except that such sick leave shall be offset proportionately by a disability benefit that 1st awarded retroactively to date disability was incurred.

The City agrees to support legislation to broaden the statutory coverage provided for injuries incurred in the line of duty.

Section 6. An annual report of sick leave shall be made available upon request.

Section 7. An employee who has used fewer than five (5) sick days in the twelve-month period ending December 31 of any year in which this Agreement is in effect may elect to redeem sick days in a lump-sum cash payment in accordance with the following schedule:

Sick Days Used	Cash Redemption	
0	5 days' pay	
1	4 days' pay	
2	3 days' pay	
3	2 days' pay	
4	1 days' pay	
5 .	0 days' pay	

The <u>per diem</u> rate will be the employee's rate on December 31 as specified in the Pay Schedule, Article XVIII.

During January the City will notify each qualifying employee of his redemption options. An employee may elect to redeem all or part of his entitlement in full days. Unredeemed sick leave days will be accumulated in the normal manner.

Section 8. Employees may use four (4) sick days as personal days per year with at least 48 hours notice prior to utilizing the personal time. Employees who elect to use all or part of these days shall lose the equivalent from his/her annual redemption of sick leave. If personal time is used for an emergency, with less than 48 hours notice, the employees must identify the nature of the emergency to allow the department to identify instances of potential abuse of this benefit.

Section 9. As of the effective date of the retirement of an employee from City service, the City shall redeem a percentage of the employee's accrued but unused sick leave.

For employees hired on or before the date of ratification of this Agreement [2017-2020], The City shall redeem no more than thirty (30%) of the total accumulative sick leave at a rate of pay which is the average of the employee's rate of pay for the last three (3) years of service but in no event shall an employee receive more than fifteen thousand (\$15,000) of the total accumulated sick leave.

For employees after the date of ratification of this Agreement, the City shall redeem no more than thirty percent (30%) of the total accumulative sick leave at a rate of pay which is the average of the employee's rate of pay for the last three (3) years of service, but in no event shall an employee receive more than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000) of the total accumulative sick leave.

It is understood that the cap on sick leave redemption at retirement does not apply and does not include accrued but unused vacation time as of the date of retirement.

ARTICLE XV (15) OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Section 1. Subject to the operating needs of each department, determined by the appointing authority, leave of absence without loss of pay will be permitted for the following reasons:

- (a) Attendance by an employee who is a veteran as defined in Section 21, Chapter 31, of the General Laws as a pallbearer, escort, bugler, or member of a firing squad or color detail, at the funeral or memorial services of a veteran, as so defined, or of any person who dies under other than dishonorable circumstances while serving in the armed services of the United States in time of war or insurrection;
- (b) Attendance by an employee who is a veteran as defined in Section 21, Chapter 31, of the General Laws as a delegate or alternate to state or national conventions of certain veterans 1 organizations as designated from time to time, during the life of this Agreement, by the Mayor;
- (c) Attendance by employees, who are delegates or alternates, at the annual convention of the Massachusetts State Labor Council;
- (d) Prophylactic inoculation required by the Municipal Employer;

- (e) Red Cross blood donations, if made on the premises of the department in which an employee requesting such leave serves;
- (f) Promotional examinations conducted under Civil Service law and rules for promotion to any position in the service of the Municipal Employer;
- (g) Medical examinations for retirement purposes;
- (h) Attendance at hearings in Workmen's Compensation cases as the injured person or as a witness. Any witness fees received by such injured person or witness shall be remitted to the Municipal Employer;
- (i) Voting time up to a maximum of two (2) hours for voting in a state, municipal or other election, provided that the hour of opening and closing the polls in the city or town in which an employee is registered to vote would preclude him from voting outside regular working hours, taking into consideration travel time from the polls to his regular place of employment, or vice-versa;
- (j) Reasonable time for the processing of grievances by one employee's representative on each shift. The Union shall provide and keep up-dated a list of such representatives;
- (k) Attendance at educational programs required or authorized by the Municipal Employer; and
- (1) Emergency medical treatment for employees injured during performance of assigned work. Employees who have returned to regular duty or to light duty after having been injured during performance of assigned work will be permitted reasonable time off without loss of pay for the purpose of attending follow-up physician's appointments which cannot be scheduled during off-duty hours.

Section 2. Military Leave. Every employee covered by this Agreement shall be granted Military Leave consistent with the City of Boston's Military Leave Policy.

Section 3. Jury Duty. Every employee covered by this Agreement who is required to serve on a jury shall be granted leave of absence, without loss of pay. Upon presentation of satisfactory evidence relating to jury service and payment therefore , the Municipal Employer will pay such employee such sum of money as, when added to the amount received by such employee as compensation for jury service, shall result in the payment to him for his full salary for any particular workweek.

Section 4. Bereavement Leave. In the event of the death of a person with a relationship identified in the City of Boston's Bereavement Leave Policy, an employee who is in active service at the time of death shall be granted bereavement leave as outlined in the Bereavement Leave Policy. Any additional leave shall run concurrently with other applicable leaves of absence. This section will become effective 90-days after this Agreement is approved by the City Council.

Section 5. Parental Leave. Every employee covered by this Agreement shall be granted parental leave consistent with the City of Boston's Family & Medical Leave Policy.

Section 6. If a skeleton force is declared by the Mayor, then all employees within the City will be treated equally (i.e. if some employees within a given Department get time off, all the other employees within the bargaining unit in that Department will be given an equal amount of time off within thirty (30) days thereafter).

Section 7. One week without pay shall be granted an employee who wishes to attend to the introduction of a new family member. Such unpaid leave may be extended to a second week at the discretion of the Appointing Authority. Such leave shall not adversely affect seniority or vacation credits.

Section 6. Notification Requirements for Employees Receiving Workers

Compensation Benefits. Any employee injured at work must immediately, or as soon as physically capable, notify in writing on City-approved forms both the Worker's Compensation service and his/her department head of the date, time, location and nature of the injury. A Department's personnel officer or designee shall endeavor to contact the employee at his or her last known address (using the letter attached as Appendix I) upon receipt of notice from the City's Workers Compensation Division that the employee's benefits have been terminated. However, the employee shall bear the responsibility for notifying both the worker's compensation service and the employee's department head of all developments in the employee's worker's compensation case. In particular, the employee must notify the department head when the employee appeals any rulings of the City's Worker's Compensation Division or of [he Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Industrial Accidents, or related entities.

Also, the employee must immediately notify his/her department head in writing when he/she has been cleared for return to work regarding his/her intent to return to work or request applicable leave. Any employee who fails to notify his/her department head of his/her ability to return to work after being medically cleared to do so through the Worker's Compensation process shall be subject to discipline or discharge. Any employee who fails to notify his/her department head accordingly and within fourteen (14) days of receiving medical clearance to return to work may be considered to have voluntarily separated from service. Such separation shall only be a subject of the grievance and arbitration article hereunder through Step 3 and shall not be subject to arbitration.

All employees returning to work from work related injuries may be ordered to submit to a medical examination pursuant to Article XIV, section 3.

ARTICLE XVI (16) SAFETY AND HEALTH

Both parties to this Agreement shall cooperate in the enforcement of safety rules and regulations. Complaints with respect to unsafe or unhealthy working conditions shall be brought immediately to the attention of the employee's superior and shall be a subject of grievance hereunder.

The Municipal Employer and the Union shall establish a joint safety committee consisting of representatives of each party in each department for the purpose of promoting sound safety practices and rules.

ARTICLE XVII (17) MISCELLANEOUS

- **Section 1.** Bulletin board space will be provided for Union announcements. Such announcements shall not contain anything political, denunciatory, or inflammatory; nor anything derogatory of the Municipal Employer or any of its officers or employees. Any Union-authorized violations of this Section shall entitle the Municipal Employer to disregard its obligations under this Section.
- Section 2. (a) No material originating from the Municipal employer derogatory to an employee's conduct, service, character or personality shall be placed in the personnel files unless the employee has had an opportunity to read the material. The employee shall acknowledge that he has read such material by affixing his signature on the actual copy to be filed. Such signature does not necessarily indicate agreement with its contents, but merely signifies that the employee has read the material to be filed.
- (b) The employee shall have the right to answer any material filed and his answer shall be attached to the file copy.
- (c) Any employee shall have the right, on request at reasonable times, to examine all material in his personnel file which is neither confidential nor privileged under law, in the presence of an officer in the Personnel Office. A copy of any such material shall be furnished to the employee at his request.
- Section 3. Should any provision of this Agreement be held unlawful by a court of administrative agency of competent jurisdiction, all other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in force for the duration of the Agreement.
- **Section 4.** As soon as practicable after the execution of this contract, the City agrees to take steps to provide each employee with two (2) work uniforms.
- **Section 5.** The City agrees to compensate employees in an amount not to exceed one thousand hundred dollars (\$1,000.00) in any year for courses and seminars provided that they are authorized, required and job related. The employees must notify the City in advance of taking such course and receive approval in writing.
- Section 6. The City will provide two sets of foul weather gear at each worksite.

- Section 7. Residency Requirement. Effective upon ratification and approvals, members of the bargaining unit must be residents of the City of Boston in accordance with the City of Boston's Residency Ordinance (Ord. 1976, c. 9 as amended), except that after ten (10) consecutive years of full-time service from the date of hire with the City of Boston, bargaining unit members will be exempted from the Residency Ordinance
- Section 8. The City shall conduct, and the Union cooperate in a comprehensive job evaluation and reclassification study having as one of its purposes an analysis of the issues surrounding the concept of pay equity. Any change in a bargaining unit employee's salary as a result of said classification study shall be the subject of future negotiations between the parties.
- Section 9. The Municipal Employer agrees to extend the letter of intent agreed to in the Memorandum signed in 1984 regarding the closing of City facilities or transfer of County facilities, except that the name "International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local 25" shall be inserted in lieu of "National Conference of Firemen and Oilers, Local 3, AFL-CIO" and except that the phrase "Union members" shall replace the phrase "Firemen and Engineers in paragraph number 1.
- **Section 10.** The City shall make a good faith effort to provide each employee with a summer and winter jacket.
- Section 11. Seniority and Layoff. Seniority shall be defined as length of total continuous service with the City or the County.

The order of layoff shall be determined by an employee's seniority date in the order of least seniority first. Provisional employees shall be laid off prior to any permanent employees, according to their longevity date or date of hire.

A recall list shall be established for permanent and provisional employees who request recall. The list shall be maintained for 2 years. An employee must indicate in writing to the Appointing Authority his desire to be maintained on a recall list.

- Section 12. The Chief Power Plant Engineer may stand alone on the day watch. The parties will continue the practice with respect to the Chief Engineer that all other members of the bargaining unit have the right of first refusal for overtime with exceptions for supervisory overtime and extended shift overtime.
- **Section 13.** The City agrees to reimburse employees for the fees for any license which is a requirement for the employee's position.
- **Section 13-B.** Effective the first pay period of calendar year 2008, all members of the bargaining unit shall be required to receive his or her compensation via direct deposit, if such arrangement has not already been made by the employer to that date.

Section 14. Life Insurance. In accordance with Massachusetts General Law, the City provides five thousand dollars (\$5,000) basic life insurance for each employee. The City pays fifty percent (50%) of the premium for this benefit. Effective January 1, 2008, the City will provide an additional five thousand dollars (\$5,000) of Life insurance. The employer will pay fifty percent (50%) of the premium for this additional life insurance. The employee will pay the remainder of the premium. This additional life insurance product shall be discontinued when the enrollee ceases to be a member of the bargaining unit.

Section 15. Health Insurance Opt-Out. Effective July 1, 2007, bargaining unit members declining the City's health insurance benefit shall be eligible for the City's opt-out insurance benefit pursuant to the City's health insurance policy. Those bargaining unit members shall receive fifteen hundred dollars (\$1,500) annually for opting-out of an individual plan or twenty-five hundred dollars (\$2,500) annually for opting-out of a family plan under the above-mentioned policy.

Eligibility.

To participate employees must have been enrolled or be currently enrolled in medical coverage through the City of Boston for a year and have dropped their coverage;

Employees are eligible for the payment if they have coverage under another plan. Other plans include:

- Employee spouse's/partner's plan (as long as he or she is covered by someone other than the City of Boston, Boston Water and Sewer Commission or the Boston Public Health Commission);
- b. A private plan;
- c. A plan offered through a second employer (if you have another job that provides health care benefits); or
- d. A retiree health plan from an employer other than one of the City of Boston groups.

Section 16. Attendance. Every employee covered by this Agreement shall be required to comply with the City of Boston Attendance Policy beginning January 1, 2013.

Section 17. Light Duty. Employees who are receiving benefits under the City's workers' compensation program shall be required to comply with the City of Boston's Light Duty policy.

Section 18. Technology and Assets

Section 1. The Union recognizes that the City is implementing new technology resources and modernizing its business processes to replace non-existing or obsolete systems and devices. As such, the City may introduce new technology to the City's workforce. The City will provide the Union with thirty (30) days notice prior to implementing any change to technology. Perceived changes in job duties related to new technology are not a basis for reclassification.

ARTICLE XVIII (18) PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL

- Section 1. A performance appraisal system shall be established by the County/City and/or its various departments. The purpose of this system shall be to appraise the performance of all employees covered by this agreement.
- Section 2. All appraisals shall be in writing and shall be included in the employees official personnel file. The evaluations will be performed by the Appointing Authority or his/her designee. The parties also recognize that, where practicable, evaluations should be performed by those persons who supervise the employee that is being evaluated.
- Section 3. The evaluating criteria used in the performance appraisal system shall be as objective and job related as is practicable. Each employee shall be evaluated at least once a year but not more than twice in one year.
- Section 4. The employee and the person responsible for conducting the evaluation shall sign the performance appraisal form. If the employee disagrees with the results of the evaluation, he/she may file a written rebuttal statement. This statement shall be affixed to the form.
- **Section 5.** No performance appraisal format may be used by an appointing authority without the approval of the Office of Human Resources of the City of Boston.

Should the City wish to change or eliminate the performance evaluation form, it will provide the union with thirty (30) days notice.

Section 6. An employee may file a grievance based on a performance appraisal when discipline is issued as a result of a performance appraisal. A poor evaluation shall not be considered discipline.

ARTICLE XIX (19) COMPENSATION

Section 1: The following pay schedules shall be effective upon the dates indicated in this Agreement.

For a 3 year contract

• Effective the start of First Pay Period (FPP) following the dates below, increase the salary as follows:

July 2023		2%
July 2024		2%
July 2025	-	2%

July 2026

2%

Effective the start of FPP following the dates below, add to annual base wages as follows:

January 2024	\$500.00
January 2025	\$250.00
January 2026	\$900.00
January 2027	\$800.00

Retroactive pay, if any, shall be limited to employees of the City on the date of City Council funding. Employees who separated from employment for any reason prior to City Council funding shall not be eligible for retroactive pay, except for employees who retired after, but not including on, June 30, 2023.

Section 2 If state aid revenue decreases compared to the prior fiscal year at any point during the fiscal year 2026, then the next scheduled base wage increase and base dollar amount increase will be delayed by one year from the scheduled date. However, all base wage increases and base dollar amount increases due under this agreement will be paid to employees prior to the expiration of the agreement.

Section 1B. Bi-Weekly Pay. The City may, upon 90 days' notice to employees, change from paying employees weekly to paying employees bi-weekly. Employees will receive electronic pay stubs in lieu of paper stubs, but will have the option to elect to receive paper copy.

Section 2. Night Shift Work. Effective July 1, 1985, whenever in the course of his regular service, an employee works a night shift, he shall be paid a night shift differential of forty dollars (\$40.00) per week in addition to his regular pay. The term "night shift" shall mean a regular work shift four (4) or more hours of which occur between 7:00 P.M. on one day and 8:00 A.M. on the next succeeding day, except that in the Parks and Recreation Department is shall mean a regular work shift four (4) or more hours of which occur between 6:00 P.m. on one day and 8:00 A.M. on the next succeeding day.

Section 3. The parties acknowledge that the so-called twenty (20) year rule initially established by the 1963 Classification and Compensation Plan only applies to promotions within the bargaining unit. It does not apply to Employees who reach their twenty (20) years in their current position.

Section 4. Mileage. Mileage allowance shall be twelve cents (12¢) per mile.

Section 5. Compensation Grade Appeals. For all members of Teamsters, Local 25, employed in all City departments, the City and Union shall follow a prescribed process for review of Compensation Grade Appeals (CGA). The procedure set forth in this section shall be

the exclusive procedure for changing the compensation grade for any position that this Agreement covers, notwithstanding any prior arbitration awards, agreements, or practice. Specifically, an arbitrator is without authority to change the grade of a position through a grievance citing Article 11 (Temporary Service in a Higher or Lower Position and Promotions).

The Union agrees that any position for which an appeal is made was properly graded on the effective date of this Agreement. In considering an appeal, the City shall not examine changes in the job content in the position for which the appeal is claimed that occurred prior to the effective date of this Agreement. Rather, the review shall be restricted to a review on the issue of whether, after the effective date of this Agreement, there was a fundamental, substantial, and permanent change in the job content of such position that could have the effect of changing its compensation grade. To warrant an upgrade, the employee must demonstrate that she/he/they actually performs a majority of the higher graded job functions listed in the higher graded job description the majority of the time. The review shall not consider perceived changes in job duties related to new technology, state or federal mandates, and/or to increases in the volume of work or duties. Further, the review shall not consider whether other employees in the higher graded job actually perform the duties listed in the higher graded job description.

The procedure:

- 1. The Union shall submit a completed CGA application on behalf of a member(s) to Office of Labor Relations (OLR). Incomplete applications shall be returned to the Union not more than 5 days after receipt.
- 2. OLR shall forward the application to OHR Classification and Compensation Unit and to the employee's Department not more than 5 days after receipt.
- 3. OHR Classification and Compensation Unit staff shall review the application, and will reach out to the department and the Union for additional information. Applications that meet the standard for upgrading a position shall be granted. Applications that do not meet the standard for upgrading a position shall be denied and returned to the Union. OHR Classification and Compensation Unit shall complete this review and OLR will notify the Union within 60 days from receipt.
- 4. Within twenty calendar days of receipt of OHR's denial of a CGA, the Union may request in writing a review before the City's Director of Human Resources or her/his/their designee.
- 5. Upon receipt of the Union's request, the Director of Human Resources or her/his/their designee shall, within 7 days, schedule a review. The Union must cooperate in the scheduling of the review or else the review will not be held. The review shall occur within 90 days of receipt of the Union's request for a review.
- 6. After the review, the Director of Human Resources may either grant or deny the CGA. The Director's review of the CGA shall be completed and a decision issued within 90 days of receipt of the request from the Union.

- 7. Should the Director of Human Resources deny a CGA after review, the Union may file a grievance.
- 8. In any arbitration under this Section, the Arbitrator will be limited to the question of whether or not the City was arbitrary or capricious in its determinations the CGA did not meet the standard for upgrading a position.
- 9. An arbitrator is without authority to award any remedy for any period of time predating the date the application was filed in OLR.

This section replaces any prior Collective Bargaining Agreement, Supplemental Agreements, Side Letters to the Collective Bargaining Agreement, Settlement Agreements, Memoranda of Agreement, Memoranda of Understanding, policies, or by practice, related to this issue.

Section 6. No moneys shall be paid under this Agreement unless and until the funds necessary to implement this Agreement have been appropriated.

Section 7. Effective January 1, 1973, an employee with not less than one year of service who is not a permanent employee shall be advanced to the step next higher in his pay grade, and thereafter shall automatically advance to the next higher step, if any, unless he fails a Civil Service examination or fails to take a scheduled Civil Service examination without reasonable cause. An employee who on January 1, 1973 has less than one year of service or who is hired thereafter shall receive step-rates under this provision except that his anniversary date shall be date of hire.

Section 8. No employee shall lose pay upon promotion (e.g. when promoted from a position to which he had been provisionally promoted).

Section 9. This Section is Intentionally Left Blank.

Section 10. Effective July 1, 1998 and thereafter, there shall be a longevity program for all employees in the unit, as follows:

Employees with (10) ten years of service shall receive \$150.00. On June 30, 1987, employees will receive \$200.00 per year. On July 1, 1998, employees will receive \$215.00 per year.

Employees with (15) fifteen years shall receive \$200.00. On June 30, 1987, they shall receive \$250.00 per year. On July 1, 1998, employees will receive \$265.00 per year.

Employees with (20) twenty years shall receive \$250.00. On June 30, 1987, they shall receive \$300.00. On July 1, 1998, employees will receive \$315.00 per year.

Employees with (25) twenty-five years shall receive \$300.00. On June 30, 1987, they shall receive \$350.00 per year. On July 1, 1998, employees will receive \$365.00 per year.

Payment of the longevity amount shall be due on the employee's anniversary date.

- **Section 11.** Compensation for work performed by employees on Christmas day only, shall be at a double time rate.
- Section 12. The City agrees to compensate the employee who fills in for the Chief Power Plant Engineer during his vacation at the rate of the vacationing Chief Power Plant Engineer.
- Section 13. Weekend Differential. Effective the first pay period after ratification of this agreement, increase the weekend differential from \$0.60 for each for each hour worked between 11:00 P.M. Friday and 7:00A.M. Monday to one dollar and twenty-five \$1.25

Section 14. Tool and/or Boot Allowance. Each employee of the bargaining unit will receive a maximum Tool and/or Boot Allowance of three hundred (\$300.00) per calendar year for the reimbursement of purchases of boots and/or tools, provided that the employee furnishes receipts to the employer. Under no circumstances shall any employee receive more than a total of three hundred (\$300.00) per calendar year for the purchase of tools and/or boots

A. Eligibility

- 1. Employees on Workers' Compensation, alterative work assignment, light duty, or unpaid time for more than six months of the preceding twelve months are not eligible for the tool and/or boot allowance;
- 2 An employee who terminates on or before January 1st is not eligible for the tool and/or boot allowance
- <u>B. Boots</u> The employer will only reimburse employees for the purchase of boots (protective footwear) that protect the employee from the danger of foot injuries due to falling or rolling objects, piercing the sole, or other hazards of the job.
- <u>C. Tools.</u> Only tools that are used on the work site on a daily basis shall be eligible for reimbursement. Those employees who do not maintain an adequate current inventory of tools to perform his/her duties shall not be granted reimbursement for tool purchases. The determination will be made by his/her supervisor outside the bargaining unit

ARTICLE XIXA (19A) DENTAL/VISION

The City will continue the current dental/optical insurance through the Massachusetts Public Employees Fund available to the members of the bargaining unit, paid in full by the employer. No dispute or claim relative to any and all aspects of the dental/vision plan, including but not necessarily limited to claims related to the Fund's administration of such plan, the level of benefits provided by such plan, and/or any modification(s) to such plan, is subject to Article VII (Grievance Procedure) of the Collective Bargaining Agreement

ARTICLE XX (20) DRUG TESTING POLICY

The City of Boston and Local 25 recognize that the illegal use of drugs, the abuse of prescription medications, and the abuse of alcohol by members of the Department pose serious threats to the public welfare as well as to the employees of the Department.

The goal of this rule is to detect and to prevent substance abuse whenever possible and to assist in the rehabilitation of employees rather than to terminate the employment of members who are abusing drugs and/or alcohol.

A. Standard for Testing:

- I. The Department's Commissioner, or his/her designee, based upon reasonable suspicion may require that a union member submit to substance screening by urinalysis which shall be administered by a competent testing laboratory. This testing laboratory shall be a member of the National Institute for Drug Abuse.
- II. "Reasonable suspicion" is belief based on objective and articulable facts sufficient to lead a prudent member to suspect that an employee is using, is in possession of, or control of, or is under the influence of, drugs or alcohol while on duty.
- III. Circumstances which may constitute a basis for reasonable suspicion include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - Direct observation of drug/alcohol use while on duty;
 - Member found to be in possession of alcohol/drugs while on duty;
 - Spontaneous unusual, abnormal, erratic, or unacceptable behavior or behavior
 which otherwise indicates that the member is under the influence of an
 intoxicating substance (e.g.) the presence of bloodshot eyes, glassy eyes, slurred
 speech, lack of coordination or other indications of intoxication or substance
 abuse;
 - Documented pattern of unusual, erratic, or unacceptable behavior;
 - Extended or patterned sick leave use which indicates that the member is unable to work due to substance abuse;
 - An on-duty accident in which safety precautions were violated or careless acts were performed;
 - Reporting for work unfit for duty.

B. Prohibited Conduct:

The following conduct related to the use of drugs and alcohol is prohibited. Any employee who engages in prohibited conduct will be disciplined, up to and including termination:

I. Prohibited Use of Alcohol

- i. Consumption, possession, manufacture, distribution, dispensation, sale or storage (including in a desk, a locker, a motor vehicle, or any other repository) of alcohol on City property, on City business, in City supplied vehicles, in vehicles being used for City purposes, or during work hours, or during any break is prohibited.
- ii. Further, the City of Boston prohibits employees who leave City property during work hours to consume alcohol if they will be returning to work, e.g., drinking during lunch is prohibited.
- iii. Any alcohol misuse that could affect the safe performance of an employee's duties is prohibited.
- iv. Specifically, an employee is prohibited from:
 - a. Having any detectable amounts of alcohol in his/her system during, just before, or just after performing their duties;
 - b. Having a blood alcohol concentration of .02 % or greater, upon reporting for work, before, during or just after performing his/her duties, is in violation of the City's policy and the employee will be subject to discipline up to and including termination.

II. Prohibited Use of Drugs

- i. All use of drugs is prohibited at any time. Having any detectable amount of drugs in an employee's system is a violation of the City's policy. The following conduct is prohibited:
 - a. Use, possession, manufacture, distribution, dispensation, sale or storage (including in a desk, a locker, a motor vehicle, or any other repository) of a controlled substance, illegally used drug or drug paraphernalia on City property, on City business, in City supplied vehicles, in vehicles being used for City purposes, or during working hours;
 - b. Failure to notify a supervisor of the legitimate use of a drug (i.e., prescription medication) that may adversely effect the employee's performance of his/her duties.
- III. Prohibited conduct related to drugs and alcohol is prohibited:

The following conduct related to drugs and alcohol is prohibited:

- i. Switching, adulterating, or committing any other misconduct pertaining to any breath, urine or blood sample;
- ii. Refusing to submit to an inspection when required under this Policy;
- iii. Refusing to submit to a new hire probationary, reasonable suspicion, or follow-up drug or alcohol test when required;

- iv. A refusal to submit to such test is treated as a positive test result.
- v. Disclosing to individuals, other than a need to know basis of information pertaining to alcohol and/or drug testing referrals, results of such testing or treatment referrals:
- vi. Failing to adhere to any of the requirements of a mandatory referral to EAP.

C. Procedures for Testing:

- I. All Departmental members initiating testing action on the basis of reasonable suspicion will be required to detail in writing, the specific facts, symptoms, or observations which form the basis for their conclusion that reasonable suspicion existed to warrant testing of the member.
- II. The results of the test shall be provided by the Laboratory only to the Commissioner and/or his/her designee, who shall provide a copy of the results to the member.
- III. A member who fails to undergo a test as ordered, or who fails to provide a test sample as directed by the testing laboratory, will be subject to disciplinary action including possible termination.
- IV. A member may also be tested as part of a routine testing program instituted as a result of a prior drug or alcohol related disciplinary proceeding for a period of one (1) year.
- V. Members returning from suspension will be tested if such is required by the Commissioner.
- VI. Probationary employees will be subject to testing at any time during their probationary period. A confirmed positive test result will be grounds for termination, without recourse.

D. Consequences of a Positive Alcohol and/or Drug Test:

The following will result when an employee has a positive alcohol and/or drug test:

- I. Any probationary employee who has a positive alcohol and/or drug test will be terminated, without recourse;
- II. An employee with more than six (6) months of service who has a positive alcohol and/or drug test will be suspended for twenty (20) days without pay, and will be given a mandatory referral to EAP. If said employee fails to abide by the rules of the EAP or refuses to complete the EAP, he/she will be terminated; and
- III. An employee who has a second positive alcohol and/or drug test will be terminated from his/her position immediately.

E. Consequences of a Refusal to Submit to a Required Alcohol and/or Drug Test:

I. Any refusal to a new hire probationary period test, a reasonable suspicion test, a random test, or a follow-up test, is considered a positive verified drug and/or alcohol test and the consequences of a positive test will apply; and

II. Failure to provide an adequate sample for testing without a valid medical explanation, or engaging in conduct that clearly obstructs the testing, constitutes a refusal to submit to a test.

F. Employee Assistance Program

The City of Boston maintains a Employee Assistance Program (EAP) which is available twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week. this Program is for the benefit of all members. Voluntary participation, which is participation because a member believes he/she may benefit by attending meetings of the EAP, is confidential and is at the option of the member.

G. Mandatory Participation

There may be occasions when the Commissioner and/or his/her designee, shall require that a member participate in the EAP, such as, for example, when a member has been ordered to participate due to a violation of the Rules and Regulations of the Department. In such circumstances, the requirements for mandatory participation in the EAP require that the employee strictly follow the plan as set out by the EAP Coordinator. The Program Coordinator will advise the Commissioner and/or his/her designee if the member's participation complies with the above. Discipline up to and including termination, for failure to abide by the agreement, will be preferred against a member.

ARTICLE XXI (21). DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section I. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall take effect on the date of execution and continue in full force and effect through July 1, 2023. Should a successor agreement not be executed by June 30, 2027, this agreement shall remain in full force and effect until a successor agreement is executed. On or after March 15, 1990, the Union or the Municipal Employer may notify the other of the terms and provisions it desires in a successor Agreement. The parties shall proceed forthwith to negotiate with respect thereto.

Notification under this Article shall be accomplished by the Union's delivering a copy of its proposals to the Office of Labor Relations, or vice-versa.

In witness hereof, the City of Boston and the International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local 25 have caused the Agreement to be signed executed and delivered on the 30 day of October, 2025.

CITY OF BOSTON

Michelle Wu,

Mayor

Alex Lawrence

Chief People Officer

Ashley Groffenberger Chief Financial Officer

Renee Bushey,

Director, Labor Relations

Approved as to Form:

Adam Cederbaum, Esq.

Corporation Counsel

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF TEAMSTERS, LOCAL 25

Thomas G. Mari

President/Principal Officer

Joan Corey,

Vice President/Business Agent

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

In consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the County of Suffolk and the International Brotherhood of Firemen and Oilers, Local 3, AFL-CIO, agree as follows:

- The Employer agrees that the practice of Firemen and Engineers operating and maintaining HVAC equipment shall continue for the duration of this Agreement.
- 2. In the event of the closing of any City or County facility with employees covered by this contract, the Employer shall make every affort to relieve displaced employees at another facility in a comparable position at a comparable salary. This provision shall not be interpreted to require the Employer to act in violation of G.L. c. 31 or any union contract. In the event of a closing, the Employer and the union shall negotiate bumping language for displaced employees, provided that such negotiations shall not delay the closing of any facility.

	•
FOR THE CITY	/
Jun O Cox James B. Cox Acting Supervisor Labor Relations	Thomas Brassil Business Agent International Brotherhood of Firemen & Oilers, Local 3 AFL-CIO
Date: 5/80/84	

APPENDIX I

BY FIRST CLASS MAIL

DATE:

Employee's Name Last Known Address

Re: Return to Work Order

Dear Name:

Since DATE, you have been absent from your position as a POSITION in the DEPARTMENT, under claim of an on-the-job injury. However, on DATE, you were notified that your worker's compensation benefits were being terminated as of DATE. Accordingly, you are hereby ordered to report to work no later than DATE.

This letter is being sent by the personnel division of the DEPARTMENT and is not related to any communications that you or your attorney may be engaged in with the City's Worker's Compensation Division. Therefore, if you do not return to work on DATE, then it is your responsibility to complete ALL of the following steps:

- Contact your Departmental Personnel Officer and discuss your status (i.e., whether you plan to appeal the termination of your workers comp. benefits, etc.) with him or her; AND
- Make a proper written request for a medical or other leave of absence; AND
- Produce sufficient documentation for your continued absence.

If you do not complete all of the above steps within fourteen (14) days after receiving this letter, then the Department may consider you to have voluntarily separated yourself from employment.

Again, if you do not notify your Department that you intend to appeal the termination of your worker's compensation benefits and you do not intend to request a medical Or other leave of absence, then you must report to work on DATE. Failure to do so shall constitute an unauthorized absence and shall be grounds for discipline, up to and including termination. Also, continued failure to report to work may increase the discipline that you may receive for your unauthorized leave.

Please contact me at (617) 635-XXXX should you have any further questions.

Sincerely,

DEPT. PERSONNEL OFFICER

cc: Union Representative Employee's Supervisor Personnel File

PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL FORM



CITY OF BOSTON NCFO PERFORMANCE REVIEW SYSTEM

emiloant imioinvation	
Employeo's Name:	
Job Titte!	
Deportment	
Exitation's Nomes	
How Long Under Your Supervisions	
eriod of Evaluations	

INTRODUCTION

- The PRS Reministra form was developed to meet the following goals:

 1) for provide an objective, consistent, and fair system for measuring complayed performance;

 2) to inform employees of the quality of that work, to identify those meas needing improvement, to set specific objectives for complayees, and to provide amplayees an opportunity to discuss their expect upsits and the support they need to make those greats; and in assist department heads not make those greats; and in assist department heads not make those greats; and provided, and establishing pulsation for unining and education

instructions for Evaluators

The Railing Guide will provide the basis on which all employees will be raised. Buch sategory and the order is guest to objectively applied to such employees to ascertain whether or not the standards have been met. Follow these guidelines in evaluating the employee:

- coatening for employee on the basis of work now being partermed.

 Indge each employee on the basis of work now being partermed.

 Piece a check in the best beside the phones which best describes the individual being evaluated.

 Use the Comment Contendant mess to explain your rating or to describe an employee assemble in the one of your large given the employee a rating of "those not meet expectations" or "partially meet expectations" in any extendant, you must identify the steas to improvement in order the the employee to successfully meet expectations.

 Classify your expectations
- Man the Development Astion Plan section to outline new gunts, training and development suggestions, outlineas skills, exacting you'll provide, possible mentaring, etc
- After supply to sufficient time to provide comments to the evaluation if the employees wishes to do

Section 1: CORE PERFORMANCE CATEGORIES AND CRITERIA

JOH KNOWLED	Cejtechnical s	KILLS			
Significantly Above Expectations	Above Expectations	Successinity Meets Expectations	Partially Means Expectations	Deca Not Ment Expectations	Applicable
Demonstrates automotive automotive for first skelge ring ined to per first skelge ring ined to per first skelge ring automotive for first skelge ring automotive for complex automotive for first skelge influenced for first skelge influenced for first skelge influenced for first skelge influenced for first skelge first sand skelge first skelge first sand skelge first skelge first sand skelge first sand skelge first skelge firs	Has become expens in requirements of the job; sens unifespase works media and a freque follows appropriate procedure	Demputeres knowledge and skills required to perform the job; sedest and a placedures and can reply to work assignment without chose supersisting	Needs to chain more peakestand, administratives, subtraction, subtract	Lucks kronokcigo no bo olika to perform the job; shore some nederstrood poinciples & proceduces; applies from this group offer repeated explanation or with other supervision.	The state of the s

Communic/Explanation: if Partially Mass: Expectations or Door Hot Mass Expectations is selected, please identify areas for Improvement

Above Egogyations	Above Expeciations	LI Successfully Mosts Expostations	Particulty Meets Eupootstions	L. F Does Not Meet Bepecintions	Not Applicable
work above the requirement on an armonic state of established detailing the contrastroses are supported to contrastroses are supported to contrastroses are supported to contrastroses are supported to the contrastroses are supp	Froduces and downlines incodes sociaus of work incodes of work to expedict or considering manager several representations of the considering manager several representation of the considering manager into the produce of the considering manager into the consideri	Findstor volume of work required by the job and mests drollbrea consistently. Demoustrates ability to ensauge responsibilities simultaneously; amenages three to graduate ansults.	Descriptions of the control of the c	Work is trained appear, often stall to much decidings, falle to much and surveille appear of the street laborate and training and training appear of the street laborate and training appear and the street laborate and training appear and the street laborate and the stree	

Continuents/Explanations: If Paulolly ideas Expectations or Does Not Mass Expectations is released please Montfly or ear for Improvement

QUALITY OF W					
Significantly Above	C Above Expectations	Munis Munis	Partially Meets	Does Not Mont Expositations	Applicable
Expectations Depropriated Instruction and construct instruction and construct instruction construct instruction and does not used revisions or investment of supervisor; offun desciops new and improved ways of restring	Wark is consistently accumic and incomplicated methods in section of the factor of the	Seconseions Verk is meaning to the problems of	Expeciations Viola is generally specially and thoraugh, but occasionally insecurity or tacking in shomughness; whols or assistance from amperelsor	Quality of work is below sequired standards of sengracy and hoenogistisms, separation diseason ignared en not subget	

Commence/Explanations
if Partially Mean Expectations on Doos Not Meet Expectations is selected, plante identify were for improvement

		RESPONSIBILITY				
	Significantly Above	L Above Expectations	Securifially Meets	Portially Mouts	Does Not Most	Not Applicable
	Adver Sylver in the control of the c	Expectations Somoliants seeks Our new to stifficent seeks, pedicts or organishibility; willingly sortepts additional mark with positive stifficent solitors stifficent solitors	Muesta Expositiona Mosdors instra projects on responsibilities independently, with talnized seed line reportability, littleses though on rollen liteus in timely	Mants Expectations Sticks elected to just rantime; selectant to take on additional take on the selectant take on	Expectations Demotracy duct not proceed to the process of the pro	Applicable
- T	piderostusing angajidas in sorgs in gosses at Bidgidanings din ating lings bidgigas estessai	anianus; sonores through an estion tions, soggests improventers for efficiency	द्यतीस्त्रकृत् प्रतृष्ट्रियमम् अवस्य दे सामान्यक्षः इत्यक्षेत्र	कार्य संस्करण (तास) देशसिक एके (दक्षणी)	responsibilities doer aa kilper Grough en gelon beags in a fundy freshion to ensure seguiir en ike feb	

Commental Explanation:
If Partially bluets Expectations or Does Not Meet Expectations is selected, please identify areas for improvement

36

CUSTOMER SE	RYICE				
Significantly Above	Above Expectations	Doccesskilly Meets	Panially bisets	Does Not been Expectations	Applicable
Expectificates Descentiation secretalized competing with exclusivate, internal de external; colpaces as colories and colories and descentiates desc	Demonstrates	Repressions Demonstrates respect and respect and succeptance normal extended at all times; provides complishe and at most information and sections a	Expectations Samatimes communicates with lack of patheore or expelly with use meaning from a de cateral; information and service not always complete ac normal the first lime now-compilete ac performationing expectation	Structures uses interpretations and appropriate or superchasional interpretational interpre	

Comments/Explanation: if Portfally Meets Expectations or Dear that Meet Expectations it selected, please elemify weres for improvement

į	· T	F	N	r	ıΝ	CD	.	PUN	e i	F914	3 3	T 1/
ч	* B		141				245	2	-	LUS	1.6	2 7

Programme Section Sect	The second second second second		and the same of th			_
	Aboro	Secessfully	Padially	Down Hot Meet	Not	1
Abavo	Expeciation	Meets	To beeks	Expeditions	Applicable	١
Expectations	· .	Expectations	Expeciations	l '	['	ı
lies had one or morn apprehens to perfect a descent and perfect advances to perfect along the perfect and apprehensive apprehensive and apprehensive appr	Acceptable f of absuscess within Actualismes Folicy guidelines; ravely absurd from very absurd for the first till perfect of the first till perfect	Acceptable I of absence within Atlantinos Follow guildinos; rapily face if or all; observes broad firms and basch three; ursally passelud at the lines; ursally passelud appointments.	Senerals of all concerns acceptable within Attendence Policy goldsilned; Let universe or work sometimes exerce bunding to department; occasionally telest calouded territs	Exocute # of absonces secoptible within Attendance Federy guidalities; absences cannot have able to the control of the control		

Communical Explanation: If Partially Moets Expectations of Does Hot Mest Expectations a selected, pleans identify areas for improvement

TEAMWORK &	RELATING TO OT	Hers			
Significantly Above Expectations	Above Expectations	Successivity Adents Expressions	Famially Modes Exceptibilities	4	Applicative
Escalbart work: ethologistic unit superstate and concentrate to seconditistic guals; bear motivered; position official representative sessis and supposite others	bilisalins pesilira werd selaborabile with approvince and consider to acception and province assists and separa- siders as requested with each using on	binionase effective work scholomlike work scholomlike wills sept visual and devolution to recomplish goals; university and reposits where an enquested	Semeinese siener relevence of frection to rockling with supervisors usefor tecrophers	Doze not wisk well while others to estamped by group goods, often rankes fitting with supervises or convertises; for supervises or convertises; for behavior	

Communitiesplanmitons
If Partially Mosts Expactations or Days Not Mees Expactations is selected, planse identify crows for improvement

RESPECTAULE	TERACTIONS &	valuing divers	TY.	•	
Significantly Abova Expectations Commenciates a way	Above Expectations Descriptes	Successfully Meets Expectations Displays ability to	Partially Mouta Expectations Newlaministrate or	Does Not Meet Expectations Falls short of	Applicable
Sign lared of tensistely in anguegu and letter for howest an unchitant and gubble repetitions and gubble repetitions of the resistency of	densified med respectful fanguage mut behavious forsted all attentions of the mutalization to the mutalization to the mutalization regardizes of prefal residual residual actionis, realization of chantalion, realization of chantalion of chan	Internet appropriately with all recombants of the workforce and public reposites and recombant continue continu	understanding how to interstal with a solid programmer, with reaching a solid public convening action, gondon, upo, actual orientation, uniquest of the convening action or actual orientation, upo, actual orientation, upo, actual orientation, upo, actual orientation, uniquest origin, actual orientation, actual origin, actual origin, actual orientation, actual origin, actual	standords für sessiläve rad respectivi indisvisor inventi alt entantori of the entantori of the inventiones and public; inventiones and public; invitassata un estimie orisity, gention, egg, access off-testion, relligion es ufsability	TA COMMISSION AND THE COMMISSION

Comments/Explanations

If Partially Meets Expectations or Flors Not Meet Expectations is selected, planse identify arous for improvement.

Seribu 2: PERFORMANCE CATEGORIES AND CRITERIA FOR SUPERVISORS AND MANAGERS

Fill out this parties of the form only if the employee's responsibilities include supervising or managing people

PREFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

Signationally	Above	Lisuccessfully		Tra .	Nent
Above	Experintions	Adeats	Pacifally Meets	Done Monteleer	Applicable
Experiations		Expectations	Expectations.	Ekacemions	
Does exceptional jub of sections and communicating high standards of purior manes; identifies employee through a similar, concludes the promotion of the purior in similar, concludes premiser, provides premisering such a premisering specialists.	Side and communicates ligh atmitted to all preformations desirations provides constitutes provides constitutes a well as mountly services	Sale and clearly communicates readistife particumentes requestes particulores readistifes particulares particulares particulares readistifes particulares particu	Products to more chearly establish performance uspectationed industrial more testing the containing must containing them not spice andersom and simply feedback to amployees on a complete usual parties and containing the containing	Falls to adopt in the falls to adopt in the second provide an are job second stated on the job stated	
developmental contributions present coview		ecobing as acoded; continues regaler gar formance consum	be condust more thorough performance seriewa	preference reviews	_

CommentalExplayerious

If Partially Monts Experiment on Dans Not Mant Expectations is selected, places identify a one for improvement

PLANNING & ORGANIZING SKILLS

	GALLISTENS AND DIFFER	229				
☐ Significantly	☐ A bones	Successially	Partially:	Does Not Meet	Not	1
Abaya	Exportations	Indesta	Mests	Expectations	Applicable	ı
Expectations	1 ' .	Bapcomions	Expertations	1 '	1 "	ı
Exceptionally finds supposed to the control of the	Fully plants & enginizes control of the control of the manugley like manugley like work for self and enginyees to meet organizational goals	Sufficiently plant and driganizate work/projects; abits to manage an internet workload when required; solutations with the soft and only topes up meet onganizational goods	Semetimes deen not plan and organize work work/sewels safestately; eccasionally fills behind in work/seaf; needs assistance with seafing priorities and controlling progress of the work/project	Office fails to plan and organize work/projects effectively; weak/ projects fail behind regularly; very slow to complete objectivel; deer not adequately tchedule over time of employees work; works on low pricelites intend of more fraportes; work		THE CONTRACTOR OF THE CONTRACT

CommunistExplanations If Partially Man's Expressions or Does Not Man Expectations is selected planne identify a ear for improvement

Alsove Expectations diects Meets Expectations Applicat Expectations Expectations Expectations Expectations Lacks goals.		LEADERSHIP & D	ELEGATION			
interesting godgenes and continued to the continued to th	L. Figur facturity Above Expectations from the state of t	Above Expectations Anticolees goals, objectives and expectations, is able to delaying usek to inspire subordinates to willingly achieve organizational	Li Buccessfully blents Expectations Clearly extensual enter goals, objectives und expectations to nece organization objectives; obdat to get mixeraless to follow dispetives to achieve apparizational	Expectations Meets to been sommented posts, objectives and expectations for work waits submillinates will to resist direction meets to delegate work many	Expectations Lacky guake edjocators and expectations for the work wall analyte does not officeally selly common leafs than; does not designite work effectively; subgralinates resist	L Nos Applicable

Comments/Explorations or Does Not tilent Expectations is salected, pleasu teleprify areas for improvement of Partially Missis Expectations or Does Not tilent Expectations is salected, pleasu teleprify areas for improvement.

Date For	follow up of any Areas for	Ішрі реокселі	

Section 2. The VET COMEN (VENAN) (Online).
Discuss with the emptoyee opportunities for how they might develop their strengths and skills—identify 2-3 SMART goals (Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Raiovant, Time-Barrel). This may involve retting priorities, now projects or responsibilities, unlaring (on the job, courses offered by the Chy), coaching that you offer, mentaling, the

- 1. Goal/Action Steps
- 2 Contraction Steps

3 Goodhellog Steps

Data for follow up of Davetopment Action Flan	
Socion 4: SIGNATURES AND COMMENTS	
I have reviewed this evolution and it has been discussed with ma . I understand that I may answer all or any part of availantion and that my mawer will be standard to this review	i this
Employeo's Signature	
Manager/Sopervision's Signalore:	
Drake:	
Non-PICFO Managen/Supervision Chata C	
EMPLOYEE COMMENTS: If DESIMED have roud my parternance evaluation and with to add the comments below. Them will be attached to the evaluation grad to return the copy of the avaluation with any comments by	al E

Salary Schedule A Teamsters, Local 22 Effective 7/1/2023 2% Increase

Salar	1																		•
Plan	Grade		Step 1		Step 2		Step 3		Step 4		Step 5		Step 6		Step 7		Step &		Step 9
8F	11																		
	hourly	搴	22.813143	\$	23.763454	5	24.652703	8	25.990898	\$	27,209915	\$	27.754325	5	28.309412	S	28,875601	\$	29,453113
	blwkły	\$	912,53	\$	950.54	\$	994.11			•				•		\$		-	1.178.12
	annually	\$	47,451,34	\$	49,427.98	\$	51,693,62	\$	54,081.07	\$	56,598,62	\$	67,729.00		.,,,	•			61,262.48
SF	12																		
	hourly	\$	25.532856	5	26.591274	\$	27.816187	\$	29.076774	\$	30,456286	s	31.050903	\$	31.671920	5	32.305361	\$	32,951472
			1,021.31															-	1,318.06
	ennually	\$	53,108.34	5	55,309.85	\$	57,857.67	\$	60,479.69				64,586.86						68,539.06
SF	13				:						ı								
		\$	26 990898	\$	27 200015	*	28 474346	æ	29,807432	•	31 100000	œ	31.816850	•	32,453187	÷	33,102251	•	to teans
			1,039,64		1,08B.40		1,138.85							э \$		Ф \$		\$ \$	33,764296 1,360,57
			54,061.07	-	56.596.62				81,999.46					•		¥ 5		Ф \$	70,229,73
		•	- 1/0+ 1.D;	•	00,000.02	•	00,220,07	Ψ	01,000.70	Ψ	04,001120	Ψ	dd, 118.00	Ψ	01,002.00	Ψ	00,002.00	Ψ	10,228,70
SF	14																		
	hourly	\$	28.471316	\$	29.806997	₿	31,192922	8	32.803427	\$	34,380288	\$	35.06801D	\$	35.769370	\$	36.484757	\$	37.214455
	blwkly	\$	1,138.85	\$	1,192,28	\$	1.247.72	\$	1,312.14	\$		•		5	1,430.77	\$	1,459,39	8	1,488.58
	annually	\$	59,220.34	\$	61,998.55	\$	64,881.28	\$	68,231.13	\$	71,511.00	\$				\$		\$	77,408.07
SF	15																		
		\$	31.192923	s	32.655874	8	34.174369	\$	35 937788	\$	37.666373	\$	38.419702	¢	39.18809 8	\$	39.971857	\$	40.771298
			1.247.72		1,306,23		1,366,97	-	1,437,51	-	1,506.65		1.536.79	•	1,587,52	•	1.598.87	\$	1.630.85
	annually	-	64,881.28				71,082.69				•	-	79,912,98	•				\$	84,804.30
SF	17																		
OI.		æ	27 673050	•	20.276002	æ	44 070402	•	44 020504	•	44.070007	de	42 manana		4D 700000		47 700040		10 272727
			1,506.92		1,571.08		1.643.05		43,038391					\$	48.786609		47.722343	\$	48.676787
	annually :								1,721.54		1,798.80				1,871.46	\$	1,908.89	\$	1,947.07
	wowany .	Ψ	10,000,14	Ψ	01/030/20	4	50,400.4Z	φ	89,519.85	Φ	80,760,08	Φ	89,4U7.89	Φ	81,010,78	4	55,262.47	\$	101,247.72

Salary Schedule A Teamsters, Local 22 Effective 1/6/2024 .240384 Increase (\$500.00 Flat Annual)

Salar	,							•									
	Grade	Step 1	Step 2		Step 3		Step 4		Step 5		Step 6		Step 7		Step 8		Step 9
\$F	11																
	hourly	\$ 23.058527	\$ 24.003838	\$	25,093087	\$	26,231262	5	27.450299	8	27,994709	\$	28.549796	5	29.115985	5	29,693497
	biwkty	\$ 922.14	\$ 960.15										1,141,99	•		-	
	annually	\$ 47,951.34	\$ 49,927.98	\$	52,193,62	\$	54,561.07			\$	58,229,00	\$	59,383.58				
SF	12																
	hourly	\$ 25,773240	\$ 26,831858	\$	28,056571	\$	29.317158	ŝ	30.698870	\$	31.291287	5	31.912304	` \$	32.545745	\$	33,191856
•	biwkly		1,073.27						1,227.87					-		•	
	annually	\$ 53,608.34	\$ 55,809.85	\$							65,085.88						69,039.06
SF	13																
	hourly	\$ 26.231282	\$ 27.450299	\$	28.711700	\$	30,047818	\$	31,433306	\$	32.057234	8	32.693571	8	33.342635	8	34.004679
	biwkly	\$ 1,049.25	\$ 1,098.01	\$			1,201.91						1.307.74	•	1,333,71	-	1,360,19
	annually	\$ 54,561.07	\$ 57,096.62	\$	59,720.34	\$	62,499.48	8	65,381,28	\$	66,679.05		68,002,68				•
SF	14		-														
	hourly	\$ 28.711700	\$ 30.047381	\$	31,433306	\$	33.043811	· \$	34.620672	\$	35,308894	\$	36.009754	\$	36,725141	\$	37.454839
	biwkly	\$ 1,148,47	\$ 1,201.90	8						\$		-	1,440,39	\$	1.469.01	-	1,498,19
	annually	\$ 59,720.34	\$ 62,498,55	\$	85,381.28	\$					73,441,46				76,388.29	•	77,906.07
SF	15																
	hourly	\$ 31.433307	\$ 32.896258	\$	34.414753	\$	38,178152	\$	37.906757	\$	38.660086	3	39,428480	\$	40.212241	\$	41.011682
	biwkiy	\$ 1,257.33	\$ 1,315.85	\$	1,376,59	\$	1.447.13		1,516.27		1,546,40	Š	1,577,14		1.608.49	5	1,640,47
	annually	\$ 65,361 <i>.2</i> 6	\$ 68,424.22	\$	71,582.89	\$	75,250.56	\$			80,412,98		82,011.24		83,641,46		85,304,30
SF	17																
	hourly	\$ 87.913334	\$ 39,517286	\$	41.316547	\$	43.278775	\$	45.210421	\$	46.109609	\$	47.026993	\$	47.982727	\$	48.917171
			1,580,69			-	1,731,15		1.808.42	-	1.644.38	\$	1.881.08	•	1.918.51	•	1,956,69
	annually	\$ 78,859.74	\$ 82,195.90	\$								•		•		•	101,747.72

Salary Schedule A Teamsters, Local 22 Effective 7/6/2024 2% Increase

Salary	•										•								
Plan	Grade		Step 1		Step 2		Step 3		Step 4		Step 5		Step 6		Step 7		Step 8		Step 9
SF	11							÷											
	hourly	\$	23.514597	\$	24,483914	\$	25,594948	\$	26.755907	8	27,999304	\$	28.554603	\$	29,120791	\$	29,698304	•	30.287366
	blwkly	\$						5		•		•		\$		•		-	1.211.49
	annually	\$	48,910,36			•	53,237.49	•				-		-	60,571.25			•	62,997.72
	•		•	•		•	,	•	,	•	,	-	44,00000	•	00,01 1.20	•	01,3 (2.41	Ψ	02,001.72
SF	12																		
	hourly	\$	26.288704	\$	27.368291	\$	28,617702	\$	29.903501	\$	31,310603	\$	31.917112	\$	32,660650	\$	33,196659	\$	33,855693
	biwkiy	\$	1,051.55	\$	1,094.73	\$	1,144,71	\$	1,196,14	\$	1,252.42				1,302,02	\$			1,354.23
	annually	\$	54,680.50	\$	56,926.05	\$	59,524,82	\$	62,199.28	\$	66,126.05	\$	66,387,59	\$	87,705,14	\$	69,049.05	Ś	70,419,84
													-		·	•	•	•	• • • • • • •
SF	13																		
			26.755907			-				8	32.061972			\$	33.347442	\$	34,00 94 87	\$	34.684772
	_		1,070.24	-	1,119.07									\$	1,333.90	\$	1,360.38	\$	1,387.39
	annually	\$	65,652.29	\$	50,238.55	\$	60,914,74	\$	63,749.45	\$	66,668,90	\$	68,012.63	\$	69,362.68	\$	70,739.73	\$	72,144.33
SF	4.4																		
ər	14	_	00.00004		00.040500		00.004650	_	00 E0 40-14	_		_		_					
					30.048328	ş					35.313085				36,729949	\$	37.459643	•	38.203935
	_		1,171.44	-					1,348.19		1,412,52				1,469.20	-5	1,498.39		1,528.16
	annuany	ą	60,914.74	Ф	03,/46,02	\$	66,686.90	¥	70,105.75	\$	73,461.22	\$	74,910.29	4	76,398.29	.5	77,916,08	\$	79,464.19
SF	1 5																		
		\$	32,061973	ġ.	33 554193	3.	35,103048	æ	38 001715	æ	38.664892	•	20. 492207		40.217049	•	41.016485	154	41.831915
	biwkly	-	1,282,48	\$	1.342.17	•	1,404.12		1,476.07		1.646.60		1,577,33	\$	1,608.68		1,640.66	•	1,673,28
	annually		66,688,90	\$					76,755.57				82,021.24				85,314,29		87,010.38
	,,			•		•	1 0,07 110 1	•	10,100.01	•	00, 12.2. , 55	Ψ	V6,V61.2T	Ψ	00,00 1.40		00,014,28	4	01,010,00
SF	17																		
	hourly	\$	38.671600	\$	40.307631	\$	42.142877	\$	44,144350	\$	46.114629	\$	47.031801	\$	47,967532	\$	48.921981	5	49.895514
	blwkiy	\$		\$	1,612.31	-	1,685,72			•			1,881,27		1,918,70		1.966.88	т.	1.995.82
	annually	\$	80,436,93	\$	83,839,87	\$					95,918,43	\$	97 826,15		•	-	101,757.72	•	103,782.67
	-				-	-				-			,	•		*	*** 13* ** 1 ** F	7	result marinet

Salary Schedule A Teamsters, Local 22 Effective 1/4/2025 .190192 increase (\$250.00 Flat Annual)

Sala	ry												-						
Plan	Grade		Step 1		Step 2		Step 3		Step 4		Step 5		Step 6		Step 7		Step 8		Step 9
\$F	11																		
	hourly	\$	23.634789	\$	24.604106	\$	25,715140	5	26,876099	5	28,119496	\$	28.674796	\$	29,240983	\$	29.818496	8	30.407558
	blwkly	\$	945.39	\$	984,16	\$	1,028.61		1.075.04			-		\$		-		Š	
	annually	\$	49,160.36	\$	51,176,54	\$	53,487.49				•		59,643.57						•
SF	12																		
٠.		\$	26.40R806	æ	27 /88/83	œ	28.737894	•	30 003603		24 420705	•	32.037304	•	32.670742		00 04004		00 575005
	biwkiy		1,056.36													\$			33.975885
		•								\$	-,	,	66,637,59			\$		\$ \$	1,359.04 70,669,84
		•	0.11000000	•	01,110.00	۳	CO11 1 1010	Ψ	451-1-161EA	Ψ	00,070,00	φ	00,001,00	Ψ	01,900.14	φ	09,288.00	Φ.	10,000.04
SF	13																		
	hourly	\$	26,876099	\$	28.119496	\$	29.406126	\$	30.768964	\$	32.182164	\$	32,818570	\$	33.457634	\$	34.129679	\$	34,804964
	blwkly	\$	1,075.04	\$	1,124.78	\$	1,176,25	\$	1,230.76	\$	1,287,29	\$	1,312.74	\$	1,338.71	\$	1,365.19	5	1,392.20
	annually	\$	55,902.29	\$	58,486,55	\$	61,164.74	\$	63,999.45	\$	66,938.90	\$	68,262,63	\$	69,612.68	\$	70,989.73	\$	72,394.33
SF	14																		
		s	29.406126	8	30,768520	19	32 182164	#	33 824879	\$	35 433977	¢	36.134763	Q.	38.850141	\$	97.579835	e	38,324127
					1,230,74		1,287,29		1,353,00	\$					1.474.01	\$	1,503,19	•	1.532.97
	annually				63,998,52								75,160.29		76,648,29	\$	78.166.06	-	79.714.18
ŝF											•		•		•	-	•	Ť	
2F	15		*****	_		_		_											
							35.223240		37.021907				39.553479	-	40.337241	\$		\$	41.952107
	blwkly	•	1,287.29	\$	1,346.98	•	1,408.93	\$	1,480,88	\$	1,551.40		1,582.14		1,613.49	-		•	1,678.08
	annually	Þ	66,938.90	\$	70,042.70	\$	73,264.34	\$	77,005.57	\$	80,672.98	\$	82,271.24	\$	83,901,46	\$	85,564.29	\$	8 7, 26 0.3 8
SF	17						1												
	hourly (\$	38.791792	\$	40.427823	\$	42,263069	\$	44.264542	\$	46.234821	s	47.151993	\$	48.087724	S	49.042173	\$	50.015708
	biwkiy l		1,551,67		1,617,11	\$	1.690.52			\$	1,849,39	Š	1.886.08	\$	1,923.51	5	1,961,69	Š	2.000.63
	annually !	\$	80,686,98	\$	84,089,87	\$	87,907.18	\$			•	,	98,076.15			.,	102,007,72	-4-	104,032.67

Salary Schedule A Teamsters, Local 22 Effective 7/6/2025 2% Increase

Salar	,																		
Plan			Step 1		Step 2		Step 3		Step 4		Step 5		Step 6		Step 7		Step 8		Step 9
SF	11																		
		\$	24,107484	\$	25.096188	\$	26.229442	ŝ	27,413620	æ	28.681885	95	29.248290	6	29.825802	5	30.414865	\$	31.015709
		Š		8						\$		•		•		5	1,216.59	\$	1,240.63
		•	50,143.57				54,557,24			\$			-,			\$	-	•	64,512.68
		•		•	,	•	- 1, 1	•	,	•	00,000,02	*	00,0001-7	•	10,100,20	Ψ.	OU, EVELOR	Ψ	G-1,0 1200
\$F	12																		
	hourly	\$	28.937073	8	28.038252	\$	29.312651	\$	30.624166	\$	32,059410	\$	32.878050	\$	33,324156	\$	33,983188	.5	34.655402
			1,077,48							\$					1.332.97	\$		•	1,386,22
	annually	\$	56,029.11	\$	58,319,56										69.314.24				72.083.24
								Ť						•	35,01	•	, ,,,,,,,,,,,	•	,
ŞF	13													•					
	hourly	\$	27.413620	\$	26,681595	\$	29.994248	\$	31,384343	\$	32.825807	\$	33,474941	\$	34.136986	\$	34.812272	\$	35,601063
	biwkly	\$	1,096.64	\$	1,147.28	\$	1,199.77	\$	1,265.37	\$	1,313.03	\$	1,339.00	\$	1,365.48	\$	1,392.49	\$	1,420.04
	annually	\$	57,020,33	\$	59,656.32	\$	62,388.04	\$	65,279.43	\$	68,277,68	\$	69,627.88	\$	71.004.93	\$	72,409.53	\$	73,842.21
															•	-	•		•
SF	14																		
	hourly	\$	29.994248	\$	31.383890	\$	32,825807	\$	34,501376	\$	36,141942	\$	36,857448	\$	37.587143	\$	38.331431	\$	39.090609
	-	•	1,189.77	•	.,	\$	1,313.03		1,380.06					\$	1,503.49	\$	1,533.26	\$	1,563.62
	annually	\$	52,388.04	\$	65,278.49	\$	68,277.68	\$	71,762.86	\$	75,175.24	\$	76,663.49	8	78,181.26	\$	79,729.38	\$	81,308.47
SF	15	_									•								
	-	-							37.762345	-		\$	40.344548	\$	41.143985	\$	41.959410	5	42.791149
	-	-		\$	1,373.91	\$	1,437.11		1,510.49		1,582.43	\$	1,613.78	\$	1,645.76	\$	1,678.38	\$	1,711.65
	annually	\$	68,277.68	\$	71,443,55	#	74,729.62	\$	78,545.68	\$	82,286.43	\$	83,916.66	\$	85,579.49	\$	87,275,57	\$	89,005.59
5 24																			
SF	17	٠.		_		_		_		_									
		-		•	41.236379		43.108330		45.149832	-					49.049478	\$	50,023018	\$	51,016020
	hiwidy			\$	•	\$	1,724.83	\$	1,605,99		1,886.38		1,923.80		1,961.98		2,000.92		2,040.64
	annually	φ	82,300,66	Ş	85,771.67	\$	89,665.33	\$	93,911.65	Ş	96,091.80	\$	100,037.67	\$	102,022.91	\$	104,047.87	\$	106,113.32

Salary Schedule A Teamsters, Local 22 Effective 1/3/2026 .432692 Increase (\$900.00 Flat Annual)

Sala	••						,432	692	z increase (\$9	DO.CO Flat A	חמו	ualj						
	y Grade		Step 1		Step 2		Step 3		Step 4		Step 6		Step 6		Step 7		Step 8		Step 9
SF	11																		
	hourly	\$	24.540176	\$	25.528880	\$	26,662134	\$	27.846312	\$	29.114577	s	29,680982	8	30.258494	\$	30.847557	\$	31.448401
	blwkly	Ş	981.61	\$	1,021.16	\$	1,086,49	\$	1.113.85					•		•			1.257.94
	annually	\$	51,043.57	\$	53,100,07	\$	55,467.24	\$	57,920.33	\$	60,558,32		61,736,44	.,		•			
SF	12																		
ar			07 500705		00 470044	•	00.745040		04.050550			_		_					
	himids	4	4 004 70	4	4 120 04	ф	4 400 04	•	31.056858 1,242.27	*	32,492102					•	34,415880	•	35.088094
	annually	¢	50 000 44	4	1,130,04 az dát az	₽	1,105.01	•	64,598.27	Þ	1,299,68			•	.,				1,403.52
	emineri ³	Ψ	90,020.11	Ψ	09'519'00	Ф	011010101	Φ	04,080.27	ф	67,683,57	ф	68,870,34	\$	70,214.24	\$	71,585.03	Ş	72,983,24
\$F	13																		
	hourly	\$	27.846312	\$	29.114577	\$	30.426940	\$	31.817035	\$	33.268499	\$	33,907633	\$	34,569676	8	35,244964	\$	35,933755
	biwkiy	\$	1,113,85	\$	1,164.58							\$	1,356.31		1,382,79		1,409,80	•	1,437,35
	annually	\$	57,920,33	\$	60,558,32	\$	63,288.04	\$	66,179.43	\$	69,177,68	\$	70,527.88			•		-	74,742,21
	4.5																·		•
SF	14			_		_		_											
	nourly	Þ	30,426840	*					34.934068					•	38.019835	•		•	39.523301
			1,217.08				1,330,34								1,520.79		1,550.56		1,580.93
	annuany	Þ	63,258.04	ф	00,178.49	. \$	69,177.68	Ş	72,662.86	\$	76,075,24	\$	77,563,49	\$	79,081.26	\$	80,629.38	\$	82,208.47
SF	15																•		
	hourly	\$	33.256500	\$	34,780554	\$	36.360396	s	38.195037	\$	39.993477	S	40.777240	\$	41.576677	æ	42.392102	s	43.223841
	bîwkiy	\$	1,330,34	\$					1,527.80			_	1,631,09	-	1.663.07	•	1.695.88	•	1.728.95
	annually	\$	69,177.66	\$					79,445.68			_	84,816.66			•	88.175.57		89,905,69
															,			•	
SF	17	_		_															
			40.000319						45,582524						49.482170	\$	50.455708	\$	51.448712
			1,800.01						1,823.30			\$	1 ,941 _ 1 1	\$	1,979,29	₿		\$	2,057.95
	annually (5	83,200,66	\$	86,871.67	\$	80,565.33	\$	94,811.65	\$	98,991.80	\$	100,937.87	\$	102,922.91	\$	104,947.87	\$	107,013.32

Salary Schedule A Teamsters, Local 22 Effective 7/4/2026 2% Increase

Salar														
Plan	Grade	Step 1	Step 2		Step 3	Step 4	Step 5		Step 8	Step 7		Step 8		Step 9
SF	biwkiy	\$ 25,030979 1,001,24 52,084,44	\$ 1,041,58	\$		\$	\$ 1,187.87	\$	1,210.98	\$ 1,234.55	\$ \$	1,258.58	\$	32.077369 1,283.09 66,720.93
SF	12 kourly blwkly annually	\$ 1,116.69	\$ 29.040362 1,161,61 60,403,95	\$	1,213,61	\$ 1,267.12	\$	\$	1,350.92	\$ 1,377.28	\$	35.104197 1,404.17 73,016.79	\$	35,789855 1,431,59 74,442,90
SF	blwkly	\$ 28.403238 1,138.13 59,078.74	\$	\$	1,241.42	\$ 32,453375 1,298,14 67,503.02	\$ 1,356.95	\$	1,383.43	\$ 1,410.44	•	35,949863 1,437,99 74,775,72	\$	36.652430 1,466.10 78,237,05
SF	biwkly	\$	\$ 32.452913 1,298,12. 67,502.06	8	33,923868 1,356,95 70,561,23	\$ 35.632749 1,425.31 74,116.12	\$	\$	1,521.44	\$ 1,551.21	\$ \$	39,539405 1,581,58 82,241.96	\$	40.313767 1,612.55 83,852.64
SF	biwkly	\$ 1,356.95	\$ 35,476165 1,419,05 73,790,42	\$	1,483,50	\$	\$ 40.793246 1,631.73 84,650.16		1,663.71	\$ 42,408210 1,896,33 88,209,08	\$	43.239944 1,729.80 89,939.08	•	44,088317 1,763.53 91,703.70
SF	biwkiy	\$ 40.800325 1,632.01 84,864.68	\$ 42.502452 1,700.10 88,405.10	\$		\$ 46,494174 1,859.77 96,707.88	\$ 48.544053 1,941,76 100,971.63	\$ \$	1,979.93	\$ 50.471813 2,018.87 104,981,37	\$ \$ \$	2,058.59	\$	52.477686 2,099.11 109,153.59

Salary Schedule A Teamsters, Local 22 Effective 1-2-2027 .384615 Increase (\$800.00 Fiat Annual)

Salar Plan	y Grade	Step 1		Step 2		Step 3		Step 4		Step 5		Step 6		Step 7		Chan O		Ct C
		otop i		Otep 1		nech n		oreh 4		orch a		oreh o		Step /		Step 9		Step 9
SF	11																	
	hourty \$	25.415594	\$	26.424072	\$	27.579991	\$	28.787853	\$	30,081483	\$	30,659216	\$	31.248278	\$	31.849123	\$	32,461984
	biwkiy \$.,					\$	1,151,51	\$	1,203.26	\$	1,226.37	\$	1,249.93	\$	1,273.96	\$	1,298.46
	annually \$	52,864,44	\$	54,962.07	\$	57,366.38	\$	59,878.73	\$	62,569.49	\$	63,771.17	\$	64,996.42	\$	66,246.18	\$	67,520.93
SF	12																	
ar		28 201776	đ:	20 404077	e	20 704004	4	32,082810		50 500550	_	01457574	_		_			
	biwkiy S						\$ \$		\$		-				•		•	36,174470
	annually \$					63,907.72							-	•		1,419.65 73,816.73	•	1,446.98 75.242.90
			*	a Hatamaa	Ψ	VU VU 1.1 E	Ψ	00,000.20	Ψ	72,001,60		11/04511.0	Φ	12,410.00	φ	10,010.10	Ą	70,242,80
SF	13																	
		28.787853						32,637990	\$	34.308263	\$	34.970400	\$	35.645686	\$	36.334478	\$	37,037045
		1,151.51						1,313.52	\$	1,372.33	\$	1,398.82	\$	1,425.83	\$	1,453,38	\$	1,481.48
	annually \$	59,878.73	\$	62,569,49	\$	65,353.79	\$	68,303.02	\$	71,361.23	\$	72,738.43	\$	74,149.03	\$	75,575.71	\$	77,037,05
SF	14					*												
or		34 /20003	æ	25 697500	ø	04 200000	•	00.047004		07.000744		05 460657			_	** ** !***	_	
	biwkly \$			1,313,50		1,372.33				37,690741			-	39.164846				40.698382
	annually \$			•				74,916,12			\$	1,536.82 79,914.76	\$		\$	1,596.96 83.041.96	•	1,627.94
			*	amino#100	•	71,001.20	¥	17,010,12	Ψ	10,000,14	Ψ	19,014,10	Ф	01 ₁ 402.00	Φ	55,04 1.86	Ф	84,652,64
\$F	15																	
	hourly \$	34.308285	\$	35.860780	\$	37.472218	\$	39,343552	\$	41.177961	\$	41.977399	\$	42.792825	\$	43.624559	\$	44,472932
	biwkly \$	1,872.33			\$	1,498.89		1,573.74			\$	1,679,10	\$	1,711.71	\$	1,744.98	\$	1,778.92
	annually \$	71,361.23	\$	74,590.42	\$	77,942,21	\$	81,834.58	\$	85,650.16	\$	87,312. 9 9	\$	89,009,08	\$	90,739.08	\$	92,503.70
SF	17																	
ar-		41,184940	*	42.867067	at.	44 700 457		40.070700		10.000000		15.000000		**	_		_	
	blwkiv \$		\$	1.715.48	\$ \$	44.796457 1,791,86		46.878789	\$		\$	49,882893	\$		•	51.849437	•	52.862301
	annually \$	-,			-					1,957.15 101,771.63	\$	1,995.32	\$	2,034,26	\$	2,073.98		2,114.49
	annount of	anian Jine	4	90,200.10	Ψ	80, 170,00	Ψ	91,001.00	Ф	10144,100	Ф	103,756.42	₽	190,781.37	Ψ	107,545.83	Ψ	109'803'08